
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into by 
and between J.E.T. Holding Co., Inc. ("Respondent") and the United States Department of 
Justice, Civil Rights Division, Office ofSpecial Counsel for Immigration-Related Unfai r 
Employment Practices ("OSC") (which shall be known as the Immigrant and Employee Rights 
Section as of January I 8, 2017). 

WHEREAS, on May 4, 2016, OSC received a charge filed against Respondent, DJ# 197­
103-16 (the "OSC Charge''), alleging discrim inatory hiring based on citizenship status in 
violation of th e anti-discrimination prov ision of the Immigration and Nationality Act ('' INA"). 
8 U.S.C.§ 1324 b (the "Act"). On May 16, 20 I 6, OSC notifi ed Respondent in writing that it was 
opening an investigation ofthe OSC Charge and that the investigation may also explore whether 
the Company engages in any pattern or practice ofdiscrimination; 

WHEREAS, OSC has concluded based upon its investigation that there is reasonable 
cause to believe that Respondent engaged in a pattern or practice ofcitizensh ip status 
discrimination against U.S. citizens and other protected individuals i.n hiring for dishwasher 
positions behveen approximately January 2016 and June 2016, in violat ion of the Act, by failing 
to consider their applications or offer qualified applicants positions based on their citizenship 
status; and 

WHEREAS, this Agreement does not constitute and shall not be construed as an 

admission by Respondent of any act in violation of 8 U.S.C. § 1324b, or as an admission by the 

United States of the meri ts ofany of Respondent's positions or potential defenses. 


WHEREAS, OSC and.Respondent wish to resolve the OSC Charge and investigation 
without fi.1rther delay or expense and hereby acknowledge that they are voluntarily entering into 
this Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained below and to 
fully and finally resolve all disputes among the parties hereto as of the date of this Agreement, it 
is agreed as fol lows: 

I. 	 The "Effective Date'' of this Agreement wi ll be the date that the last party signs this 
Agreement. The v,1ord "days'' in thi s Agreement refers lo calendar days. 

2. 	 Respondent shall cease and desist any employment-related policies or practices that 
violate the anti-discrimination requirements of8 U.S.C. § 1324b, including utilizing the 
processes and procedures for obtaining CW-1 or other foreign visa ,vorkers to 
di scriminate against U.S. citizens and other protected individuals. Respondent shal l 
comply with all of the requirements of 8 U.S.C. § 1324b, and shall not intimidate, 
threaten, coerce, or retaliate against any individual who asserted a right or privi lege 
under 8 U.S.C. § 1324b with respect to this investigation, or who filed a charge, 
assisted , or participated in any way in this investigation. 



3. 	 Respondent shall retain for a period ofthree years from the Effective Date of this 
Agreement the names, addresses, and application materials (e.g., resumes, application 
forms, application-related emai ls) of each .individual who applies for a job with 
Respondent in person or in writing through any source (including, by way of example, 
by email, fax, in-person, or through www.marianaslabor.net, etc). During this period, 
OSC reserves the right to make reasonable inquiries to Respondent as necessary to 
determ ine Respondent's compliance with this Agreement. As a part of such review, 
OSC may examine witnesses and request copies of Respondent's application materials. 

4 . 	 For three years from the Effective Date of this Agreement, Respondent shall post the 
following notices about workers' rights under 8 U.S.C. § 1324b: 

a. 	 OSC's "If You Have the Right to Work" poster, i;1 color and measuring no 
smaller than 8.5" by 1 I" in an area that is visible to current and prospective 
employees at J's Restaurant and the Saipan Bowling Center. Respondent may 
obtain a copy of this poster at 
http://www.justice.eov/crl/about/osc/htm/workcr.phptl. 

b. 	 A statement in the "comments" section of all of Respondent's Job Vacancy 
Announcements (JV As) posted on www. marianaslabor.net that "Individuals 
who believe they have been discriminated against in hiring, recruiting, or firing 
based on citizenship sta tus may contact the Office of Special Counsel for 
Immigration-Related Unfair Employment Practi.ces (or, after Janwu·y 18, 20 17, 
the Immigrant and Employee Rights Section) at psccr!@usdoj.uov (or, after 
January 18, 2017, ii;rcrt@usdoj.gov). 

5. 	 Respondent shall train all or its personnel involved .in hi ring and recruiti ng about the 
requirements of 8 U.S.C. § 1324b. Within 90 days of the Effective Date of thi s 
Agreement, Respondent's hiring and recruiting personnel shall participate in an 
internet-based OSC-customized webinar. Respondent shall also undertake the 
following: 

a. Al l employees wi ll be pa id theirnormal rate of pay for participating in such 
training. Respondent shall bear all costs associated with these tra ining sess ions, 
if any. 

b. 	 For three years from the Effective Date of thi s Agreement, Respondent will 
notify OSC at joann.sazama(dlusdQigQywhen it has hired new personnel who 
are involved in hiring or recruit ing. OSC and Respondent wi ll confer to 
schedule webinar training for the newly-hired personnel and the training shall 
occur within 90 days ofeach person's hire. 

c. 	 For each traini ng session, Respondent will keep a list of the attendees and send 
the list by emai l to joan n. sazama(c1),usdo j.gov within IO days of the training. 
The list shall include the attendees' full name, job title, signature, and the date 
of the training. 
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6. 	 Respondent shall pay a civil penalty to the United States Treasury in the amount of 
twelve thousand dollars ($ 12,000) via the FedWire electronic fund transfer system 
within 30 days of receiving fund transfer instructions from OSC, and shall provide 
OSC ,vith the name and email address for the individual responsible for effectuating the 
payment on behalf of Respondent no hiter than three business days after the Effective 
Date of this Agreement. On the day of payment, Respondent shall send an email to 
Joann Sazama at joann. sazama(P)usdoj.2ov confirming that payment was made. 

7. 	 Within 30 days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, Respondent shall deposit forty 
thousand dollars ($40,000) into an account (Settlement Fund), established for this 
purpose, at a federally insmed fi nancial institution. The purpose of the Settlement 
Fund is to compensate eligible qualified Claimants for losses of pay, as described 
below. 

a. 	 A "Claimant" is a U.S. cit izen, U.S. national, refugee, or asylee, or an 
individual who was a "protected" lawful permanent resident (as defined by 8 
U.S.C. § 1324b(a)(3)) at the time of any application described below, and who 
satisfies each of the following conditions: 

1. 	 Applied for an entry-level dishwasher position with Respondent during 
the period December 13, 2015, to May 14, 20 16; and 

u. 	 Made such application through www.marianaslabor.net, via e-mail to 
jet.acctg(@.pticom, or in-person; and 

ii i. Was available, willing and able to work in the dishwasher posi tion for 
which he or she applied as of the close date of the application period; 

iv. 	 Did not decline an opportunity to interview or fail to appear for a 
scheduled interview with Respondent; and 

v. 	 Did not receive a job offer for a dishwasher position from Respondent. 

b. 	 The "Back Pay Period" for Claimants will start on a ' 'presumptive hi re date," 
April 18, 2016, which is the median date between when Respondent hired its 
fi rst and last workers for the dishwasher position described in paragraph 7 
above. The presumptive hire date is calculated based on a first hire elate of 
February 15, 20 l G, and a last hire date ofJune 2 1, 20 16. The Back Pay Period 
ends as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

c. 	 Within 30 days of the Hl'ective Date of this Agreement, OSC will send a lelier 
(Attachment A) with a Back Pay Claim Form (A ttachment 13) by U.S. mail 
and.for email to the list of potential Claimants (Attachment C). Ind ividuals wil l 
have 60 days from the date of the letter to submit a completed Back Pay Claim 
Form to OSC. If an individual believes, after learning about this Agreement 
from any source thats/he is a Claimant but is not on the list, s/he may provide 
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information and/or documentation lo OSC demonstrating thats/he is a Claimant 
within 90 days from the EHective Date of this Agreement. 

d. 	 OSC will evaluarc each claim made under Paragraph 7(c) to assess whether the 
individual meets t:he conditions to qualify as a Claimant. OSC may request 
information and/or documents from Respondent to assist .in its claim evaluation, 
and Respondent shall provide such information within 7 days of a request. l f 
OSC determines that the applicant qualifies to be a Claimant, it will determine 
an amount of back pay it believes each such Claimant is owed using the 
calculation set fo rth below. Within 180 days of the Effective Date of thi s 
Agreement, OSC will notify Respondent in writing of the amount it believes 
each Claimant is owed, and provide a written explanation for the amount along 
with copies of any supporting documentation to Respondent. 

1. The form ula OSC will use to ca lcu late back pay wil l be as fo llows: 

I. 	 The number of days the Claimant was unemployed. 
underemployed, or earning lower wages than s/he would have 
earned had s/he worked for Respondent during the Back Pay 
Period minus the number ofclays during which the C lairnant was 
unavailable lo work for Respondent during that period; 

2. 	 Multipl ied by a wage rate of$48.40 per day/$242 per week 
($6.05/hr X 8 hrs./day X 40 hrs./week) for the dishwasher 
position; and 

3. 	 Mi nus any amounts the Claimant earned in mitigation through 
alternate e1nployment during the Back Pay Period. 

ii. 	 If OSC's total back pay determination exceeds the amount in the 
Settlement Fund, OSC will calculate a pro rala share to Claimants in a 
manner that OSC cleterm ines is reasonable and equitable to the 
Claimants. In calculating pro rata shares, OSC may exhaust the amount 
of the Settlement Fund. but no single Claimant may receive an amount 
more than an y single di shwasher could have earned during the Back Pay 
Period al the rate and hours established above. The part ies agree that 
Respondent's total liability to Claimants will not exceed $40,000. 

iii . If the Settlement fund exceeds the amount needed to cover the claims of 
all Claimants. any funds not distributed revert and arc rel eased back to 
Respondent. 

e. 	 Within 45 days rrom the date on which OSC provides Respondent with its 
proposed back pay determination and explanation. Respondent sha ll notify OSC 
in writ ing if it di sagrees with any back pay determination and provide an 
explanation for its position and copies of any supporting docurnents. 
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f. 	 If OSC and Respondent disagree over a back pay determination, OSC shal l 
make the fina l determination, in its sole discretion, regarding the amount to be 
paid, on a pro rata basis if necessary, and will, within 45 days of receiving 
information under paragraph 7(e), notify Respondent in writing of its fi nal 
cleterm ination. 

g. 	 Within 10 days from Respondent's receipt of the final back pay determ ination 
pursuant to Paragraph 7(t), Respondent will send each Claimant an Agreement 
and Release (Attachmenr D) indicating the amount of back pay to be received 
and a Form W-4. Upon completion of these mailings, Respondent shall send 
OSC a declaration under penalty of pe1jury or notarized affidavit attesting that it 
has mailed Attachment D and providing the names and addresses to which they 
were mailed, and the date(s) on which they were mailed. 

h. 	 Within 30 days from Respondent's receipt of a signed and completed 
Attachment D and Form W-4, Respondent will send the Claimant the back pay 
amount in the form of a check sent by fi rst class mai I accompanied by a 
payment transmittal notice, with a copy of the check and payment transmittal 
notice sent to OSC on the same date. Respondent may withhold applicable 
taxes and other withhold ings paid by employees, but may not deduct employer­
side taxes from the award. 

1. 	 Any language in intended communications to Claimants relating to this 
Agreement, other than those included as attachments to this Agreement, shall be 
submitted to OSC for prior review and approval. 

J· 	 Respondent shall follow the applicable instructions contained in lRS 
Publication 957 and credit the Cl~1 imants' back pay award to the calendar 
quarters of the years when the back wages wou ld have been earned. 

8. 	 This Agreement does not affect the right of any individual to file a charge all eging an 
unfair immigration related employment practice against Respondent with OSC, the 
authority of OSC to investigate or file a complaint on behalf of any such individual, or 
the authority of OSC to conduct an independent investigation of Respondent's 
employment practices other than with respect to the dishwasher positions that \Vere the 
subject of the OSC Charge and investigation. 

9. 	 OSC and Respondent agree that, as of the effective date of this Agreement, litigation 
concerning the violations of 8 U.S.C. § 1324b that OSC has reasonable cause to be! ieve 
that Respondent committed is not reasonably foreseeable. To the extent that either 
party previously implemented a litigation hold to preserve documents, electron ical ly 
stored in formation, or things related to th is matter. the party is no longer required to 
maintain such a litigation hold. Nothing in this paragraph relieves either party of any 
other obligations imposed by th is Agreement. 
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I0. 	Should any provision of thi s Agreement be declared or determined by any court to be 
illegal or invalid. the validi ty of' the remaining pa11s, terms or prov isions shall not be 
affected thereby and said illega l or invalid part. term or prov ision shall be deemecl not 
to be a part or this Agreement. Respondent and OSC agree that they will not. 
individually or in combinat ion with another. seek to have any court declare or 
determi ne that any prov ision of this Agreement inva lid. 

I I. OSC and Respondent agree to bear their own costs. attorneys· fees and other expenses 
incurred in this action. 

12. This Agreement resolves any and all differences between the parties relating to the 
OSC Charge and the related investigation that grew out of it, through the Effect ive Date 
or this Agreement. 

13. Once Respondent has fol til led the terms of paragraphs 6 and 7 of this Agreement, OSC 
will close its investigation of the OSC Charge and the related pattern or practice 
investigation growing out of the OSC Charge, and shall not file a lawsuit wi th the Chief 
Administrative Hearing Officer (OCAHO), in accordance wi th the terms of this 
Agreement. 

14. The provisions of paragraph 6 notwithstanding. OSC shat I not seek from Respondent 

any add itional civil penally for the pattern or practice of citizenship status 

discrim ination in violation of 8 U.S.C. § 1324b thnt are subject of' OSC Charge and 

investigation through the date this ,\greernent is signed by all parties. 


15. If. duri ng a three-year period from the EfTecti ve Date of this Agreement. OSC has 
reason to believe that Respondent is in violation of any provision of this Agreement, 
OSC shall prompt ly notify Respondent of' the purported violation. Respondent wi ll 
then bt: given 30 days from the date it is notified by OSC in wh ich to cure the violation 
to the satisfac tion of OSC, before Respondent is deemed by OSC to be in violation of 
th is Agreement. 

16. As of January 18, 2017. a ll references to "OSC.. in th is Agreement shal l al so mean and 
pertain to the Immigrant and Employee Rights Section of the Civ il Rights Division of 
the Department of Justice. 

17. This Agreement may be enforced in the United States District Court for the Northern 

Mariana Islands. 


18. This Agreement. including the attachments, sets forlh the entire Agreement between the 
parties. 



19. Thi s Agreement may be executed in multip le counterparts, each of which together shall 
be considered an original but all of which shall constitute one agreement. The parties 
agree to be bound by facsimile signatures. 

J.E.T. Holdl o., Inc. 
Bv: 

• ~v 
Dated: -k -f - J.i)JJ 

~--s. renorio 

Owner \ 


OSC for Immigration-Related Unfair Employment Practices 

Dated: 

Jodi Danis 
Special Litigation Counsel 

Joann Sazama 
Equal Opp01'tunity Special ist 
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